Minutes of Meeting of Planning Committee of Mid Ulster District Council held on Monday 6 July 2020 in Council Offices, Ballyronan Road, Magherafelt and by Virtual Means

Members Present Councillor S McPeake, Chair

Councillors Bell, Black, Brown, Clarke, Colvin,

Cuthbertson, Gildernew*, Glasgow, Kearney, Mallaghan, McFlynn, McKinney, D McPeake, Quinn, Robinson

Officers in Dr Boomer, Planning Manager

Attendance Mr Bowman, Head of Development Management

Ms Doyle**, Senior Planning Officer Ms McCullagh**, Senior Planning Officer

Ms McNally, Council Solicitor Ms McNamee, ICT Support

Ms Grogan, Democratic Services Officer

Others in Councillor McLean*

Attendance Mr Dermot Monaghan, MBA Planning*

Mr O'Hagan, Head of ICT**

* Denotes members and members of the public present in remote attendance

** Denotes Officers present by remote means

The meeting commenced at 7.02 pm.

P051/20 Apologies

None.

P052/20 Declarations of Interest

The Chair reminded members of their responsibility with regard to declarations of interest.

Councillor Mallaghan declared an interest in item 4.1 – LA09/2017/1366/F – Residential development of 52 units at 20 Dungannon Road, Cookstown for McKernan Construction Ltd.

Councillor Mallaghan declared an interest in item 4.2 - LA09/2018/1361/O – Extension to existing industrial business park at lands immediately W of Kilcronagh Business Park, Cookstown for MACM Ltd.

The Chairman, Councillor S McPeake advised that due to an ICT technicality there would be an adjournment of the meeting.

The meeting was adjourned at 7.03 pm.

The meeting reconvened at 7.21 pm.

The Chair, Councillor S McPeake welcomed members and members of the public to tonight's Planning Committee meeting, but further advised that there would be another adjournment due on ongoing ICT technical issues and stated that the meeting would recommence once all members had the opportunity to join the meeting.

The meeting was further adjourned at 7.21 pm.

The meeting reconvened again at 7.29 pm.

The Chair apologised to members and those watching through the live broadcast for ICT technical issues tonight but had made the decision to proceed with the meeting.

The Chair, Councillor S McPeake welcomed everyone to the meeting and those watching the meeting through the Live Broadcast. The Chair, in introducing the meeting detailed the operational arrangements for transacting the business of the Committee in the Chamber and by virtual means, by referring to Annex A to this minute.

The Chair also referred to addendum which had been circulated earlier in the day and asked if everyone had seen this document and had time to read it.

He said that he was aware that one committee member couldn't connect to the live stream still awaited confirmation regarding the earlier circulated agenda.

All confirmed that they had seen the addendum and had time to read it.

The Chair reiterated the importance of members using their microphones correctly so discussion is clear.

P053/20 Chair's Business

The Planning Manager provided members with an update on the following:

• Correspondence

He advised that the Housing Executive were undertaking a further consultation on the Definition of Affordable Housing and have provided a Stake Holder Briefing Paper, for which representations need to be submitted by 10th July 2020. The paper proposes to change the definition of affordable housing to read:

"Affordable housing is either: a) Social rented housing b) Intermediate housing for sale or rent that is provided outside of the general market, for those whose needs are not met by the market. Affordable housing which is funded by Government must

remain affordable or alternatively there must be provision for the public subsidy to be repaid or recycled in the provision of new affordable housing.

However, they also wish to also explore private rented housing under the umbrella term. This is of concern as it appears they are looking for the Planning system to deliver this, which at present it is not designed to do, neither does it benefit from supporting legislation. He advised against further changes to the definition of affordable housing to include private rentals and suggest we challenge the Department of Communities to demonstrate clearly how they see this operating in Practice. A draft response is attached (appendix 1).

Proposed by Councillor Mallaghan Seconded by Councillor Colvin and

Resolved That the draft letter be sent as proposed by the Planning Manager

• Development Management Performance

The Northern Ireland Annual Planning Performance Statistics are also out for Development Management for the period April 2019 to march 2020. The statistics make for good reading and demonstrate a marked performance on the previous year.

The key points are:

- 3 rd highest number applications received and decided only Belfast and Newry Mourne & Down have more. However, Mid Ulster had received the highest number of applications for commerce and industry
- Approval rate for major applications 100%
- 97.2% approval rate of local applications is highest
- Processing time reduced dramatically to 12.5 weeks, 4th fastest, despite having 3 rd highest number of applications to deal with; 4th highest number to be processed within 15 weeks - only beaten by Antrim and Newtownabbey and Mid and East Antrim who receive nearly half the amount of applications and Fermanagh and Omagh who receive 30% less.
- 2nd lowest enforcement cases opened.
- 3 rd highest number of enforcement cases concluded within 39 weeks Court actions high in comparison to others at 11.
- 100% approval rate for renewable energy applications, which are among the highest 14 received, 9 decided.

The statistics show that Mid Ulster remains a place to invest in particularly for Commercial and Industrial activities where we received the most applications of all the Council Districts in Northern Ireland.

It is also testimony to the efforts of the Head of Development Management and his teams, who have turned performance around and have much higher ratios of applications per officer than elsewhere.

The Chair congratulated the Planning Manager and his team on such impressive results

The Planning Manager advised members that the Development Plan was now open to the public and a notice would be published. He said that they were in the process of discussions with officers throughout the period and that the closing date would be announced at 5pm on Thursday 24 September 2020.

Development Plan

The Council Offices are now open to the public, and notices will be placed in the press inviting people to view the Draft Plan and other documentation and make appointments to discuss any concerns with Planning officers in the coming weeks. A closing date for representations is to be announced which will be 5 pm on 24th September 2020.

The Planning Manager said that it was on a sad note that he had to regrettably inform Members that Mid Ulster would be losing Sinead McEvoy, Head of Development Plan who would be moving closer to her home to take up the same role in Fermanagh and Omagh Council after the July Bank Holidays. She has been a great asset to this Council over the last 5 years and the Plan Strategy and all the accompanying research lays in testimony to her drive and dedication. He said that he would miss the support she has provided to him in delivering Planning Services.

The Chair concurred with everything that the Planning Manager said and stated that Ms McEvoy would be hard to replace. He said that Ms Evoy's leaving was Mid Ulster's loss but Fermanagh & Omagh Council's gain and passed on the good wishes of the committee and wished her well in her new role.

Councillor Mallaghan agreed with previous sentiments and said that he was disappointed to hear of Ms McEvoy's intention of moving to Fermanagh & Omagh Council but felt that this was a good opportunity for her and would envisage that she would carry out her role in a very professional manner as she done so here over the years.

Councillor Mallaghan enquired why the Planning Manager had not brought any refusals to tonight's committee for consideration as the agenda was very short and felt that this was a perfect opportunity to get these addressed as there were a high volume of refusals currently out in the community.

Councillor Mallaghan referred to the matter of enforcement and advised that he had been contacted by Councillor Molloy raising concerns regarding Enforcement team dealing with matters in Moy village. He asked that this matter be investigated due to the robust measures being taken and asked that an update be provided.

The Planning Manager in referring to more refusals being put on the agenda, advised members that it was his intention that buildings would be made more accessible and return to normal working hours hopefully in August, where a deferral

could be requested and availability of technology meant that this could be progressed and felt there was no reason why this could not be worked upon.

In referring to concerns raised regarding enforcement measures in Moy, the Planning Manager advised that he did not wish to discuss the matter in this arena tonight but asked that Councillor Molloy send his concerns in writing to him where he would issue a reply.

Councillor McKinney wished Ms McEvoy well in her new position and said that she was always well prepared and professional when presenting to this committee.

Councillor McKinney said that he was once again disappointed with ICT technology at tonight's meeting and said that a total of 20 hours had been lost of working teams which was unacceptable.

He concurred with member's comment about bringing forwarded refusals and said that he was happy that it would be an item on the agenda for next month's meeting.

Matters for Decision

P054/20 Planning Applications for Determination

LA09/2017/1366/F Residential Development of 52 Units at 20 Dungannon Road, Cookstown for McKernan Construction Ltd

Councillor Mallaghan withdrew to the public gallery.

Members considered previously circulated report on planning application L09/2017/1366/F which had a recommendation for approval.

The Planning Manager drew attention to late objection circulated tonight from Inaltus Limited on behalf of the objector regarding this application's recommended refusal. He read out the letter and went through concerns raised by the objector and felt that best way forward would be a deferral but said that this was up to the committee to decide.

He stated that by looking at the letter, you could read into it three different ways:

- 1) Deferral be sought
- 2) Objection being sought
- 3) Series of legal threats being made

He said that he has taken great offence at the assumption outlined in the letter regarding the alleged wrong-doing by the case officer working on the application as they were nothing but professional carrying out their duties.

He stated that this was the decision for this committee on what way to proceed.

Councillor Colvin said after contemplating the matter it would be in his best interest to declare an interest in the application L09/2017/1366/F and withdrew from the committee.

Councillor Bell sought clarification on protocol regarding the receipt of the letter and eligible timeframe for acceptance of late items.

The Planning Manager advised that the letter was received after 6 pm this evening.

Ms Doyle advised that the letter was received at 6.15 pm.

Councillor Bell stated that 12 noon prior to the meeting was the cut off time for protocol and felt that the letter contained substantive points very late in the day, which was wholly unfair.

The Council Solicitor said that there were a few issues to be considered regarding this correspondence and what could be read as a deferral request. In relation to the protocol for operation of the Planning Committee, deferral requests would have had to have been made by noon last Thursday, but that the Chair always had discretion in relation to late requests and what fairness may dictate.

She said that the fact the letter was received so late and referred to the letter where it stated they just became aware it was on the agenda, then it is plausible that the objectors may not have been aware of the application being on tonight's agenda. In light of the particular circumstances of COVID19 and that Committees has just restarted last month, then the interests of fairness may require careful consideration to be given to a deferral request.

Finally, the Council Solicitor referred to the fact that the letter raises a number of material considerations that the objector is saying have not being properly addressed and this may have an impact on any decision for the committee to make tonight.

She concluded by stating that a recent High Court case had suggested there is a need to discuss a deferral request and the reason for granting same or not.

The Planning Manager felt that this was nonsense that the notion of this only being considered in the month of July, he said that planning works all year round, month on month, but is aware of some other Councils only considering approvals in August which wasn't the case for Mid Ulster.

In relation to issues relating to Covid-19 concerns, this is a matter for the committee to consider and enquired if this would have been stopped because of investment. He said that the application was received and considered at the last committee and no refusals were brought tonight. He referred to major investment in schools in Cookstown and felt that it would have been a shame if this was lost.

The Chair said he took the Council Solicitor's point on board regarding the lateness and our duty, but felt that this be considered and perhaps maybe worthwhile getting

more details. He agreed with the Planning Manager's comments and said that Mid Ulster wants to make planning work for everyone and was in members best interest to promote application approvals, as we were duty bound and wanted to reiterate that there was no ulterior motive in taking this application forward at this time.

Councillor Brown said that he took on board previous comments made by the Planning Manager and Councillor Bell but felt that consistency was not being adhered to. He said that at previous planning meetings, that when late agenda items were circulated on the night requesting deferrals, no-one questioned this and decisions were made at the last minute.

He felt that the objectors had sent their thoughts to this committee for consideration after the application being previously deferred at a previous meeting, and felt that it was up to this committee to give them the benefit of the doubt regarding the issue of Covid-19 concerns.

Proposed by Councillor Brown

To defer the application for one more month and bring back to August committee after all investigations are carried out properly.

The Planning Manager stated that there was a procedure to follow and members should be very careful with this situation as he did not want to write a different set of procedures, but this was literally a decision for the committee to make.

Councillor Cuthbertson concurred with Councillor Brown and said that there could be some confusion for people as the Planning meeting was always held on the first Tuesday of each month. He said that he did not agree with late items being circulated on the night of the meeting and stated that in his view, a planning application was live until a decision was made.

Councillor Cuthbertson seconded Councillor Brown's proposal.

The Chair advised that the committee be adjourned until some ICT technical issues be addressed.

The meeting was adjourned at 8.05 pm.

The meeting reconvened at 8.10 pm.

The Planning Manager said that when a request was previously made for a deferral, a person had the opportunity to speak to committee and stated that one of the things that concerned him was there could be grounds for a grievance, as planning members give their approval to speak at the meeting. He said that previously the response was not ready with the view of the planning application, with planning appeal being a charade and all these consultants against the application and a barrister for the applicants agreeing with Planners.

He said that Mid Ulster Council does not want to be seen as an organisation not operating in a proper way and felt that the best way forward would be to allow a deferral to show complete transparency.

Councillor Bell said that he understood what the Planning Manager was saying, but would like clarity for those who wanted to speak as the deadline for requests was 12 noon on Friday before the meeting.

The Planning Manager advised that a request for speaking rights was agreed at a previous meeting and said he wouldn't be an advocate of seeking a deferral for the sake of it. He said if it is the case of not being the right decision, there is always someone against something and everybody is right and felt in this instance the best decision would be that everybody has had an opportunity to make representation.

The Chair said that the general opinion would be to defer the application until the August Committee.

Resolved That planning application LA09/2017/1366/F be deferred until the August meeting where a final decision will be made.

Councillor Mallaghan said that where we stand, the committee has set a difficult precedent going forward as with previous applications. He said that he understood what the Planning Manager was saying and how this is treated, but felt that when a contentious application comes forward and we miss the deadline this is not feasible. In the past when there were objections to a major supermarket in Cookstown, the Planners were praised for their great work in taking it forward and six months down the line, we are seeing a very different scenario.

The Planning Manager advised that everything before this was different, no other circumstance will be the same and late correspondence is always on the agenda each month.

Councillor McKinney said he wanted to make a note that this Planning committee has in the past deferred a deferral and in some cases, deferred an application for a third time and this was nothing new as this has been done numerous times.

Councillor Brown asked that members speak properly into the microphones, as it is sometimes difficult to hear what the committee was saying.

Councillor Colvin returned to the meeting at 8.18 pm.

LA09/2018/1361/O Extension to Existing Business Park at Lands Immediately W of Kilcronagh Business Park, Cookstown for MACM Ltd

Members considered previously circulated report on planning application which LA09/2018/1361/O had a recommendation for approval.

Proposed by Councillor Clarke Seconded by Councillor Glasgow and **Resolved** That planning application LA09/2018/1361/O be approved subject to

conditions as per the officer's report.

Councillor Mallaghan returned to the meeting at 8.20 pm.

LA09/2019/0665/F Demolition of Existing School Building, Construction of

new 16,000m2, 1300 Pupil School Building and Associated Works on the Existing School Site; 3G Synthetic Pitch and Multi-Use Games Areas at Holy Trinity College, 9-29 Chapel Street. Cookstown for St Patrick's Educational Trust

Limited

Members considered previously circulated report on planning application which LA09/2019/0665/F had a recommendation for approval.

Proposed by Councillor Mallaghan Seconded by Councillor McFlynn and

Resolved That planning application be LA09/2019/0665/F approved subject to

conditions as per the officer's report.

LA09/2019/1259/F Change of Use from an Existing Ground Floor Bike Shop/Store to 5 Single Bedroom (Bedsit) Apartments at Ground Floor, Northland House, 2 Northland Row, Dungannon for Milford Properties Ltd, Homecare Housing

Members considered previously circulated report on planning application which LA09/2019/1259/F had a recommendation for approval.

Councillor Cuthbertson said that after reading over the application this afternoon, he would have some hesitations regarding the recommendation. He said that he would have to disagree with the Planning Manager's idea that this site was part of the town centre as it was not familiar with people coming to the area and opposite to the Royal School. He stated that a major concern would be parking facilities at this property and space for wheelie bins etc. as he had dealt with these kind of issues in the past and wanted some guidance.

The Planning Manager advised that this was the town centre and its boundary. He said that this application had concerned him as it was ultimately for a non-residential use and there was an onus on us to try and protect retail use and the retail core, but this does not stretch out to this as Perry Street was in a dilapidated state. He advised that the Prime Minister was carrying out a review on turning shops into residential units and there was no reason to refuse this application as in his opinion it is in the town centre and parking facilities has been considered within the report. He stated that there was a level that we should not go below where other Councils deem acceptable like canopies on basement windows etc. and when hard comes to hardy, we do not have a reason to refuse this application because of assumptions and would have to favour the applicant.

Councillor Cuthbertson said that he appreciated where the Planning Manager was coming from but was concerned about parking facilities and the lack of space for wheelie bin. He felt that this was just another nail in the coffin for Dungannon as the retail core was dying and serious problems relating to surrounding flats which was damaging the image of Dungannon.

The Planning Manager said that in the report all these concerns have been addressed by the Developer.

Proposed by Councillor Mallaghan Seconded by Councillor Bell and

Resolved That planning application be LA09/2019/1259/F approved subject to conditions as per the officer's report.

LA09/2019/1337/O Residential Development at Vacant Site E of 19-25 Station Road and between No's 25 & 31 Station Road, Magherafelt for Telereal Trilllium

Members considered previously circulated report on planning application which LA09/2019/1337/O had a recommendation for approval.

Proposed by Councillor McKinney Seconded by Councillor Clarke and

Resolved That planning application be LA09/2019/1337/F approved subject to conditions as per the officer's report.

LA09/2019/1634/F Change of Access (approved under LA09/2017/1230/F) adjacent to 6 Downings Road, Ballynease-Strain, Portglenone for John McCann

Members considered previously circulated report on planning application which LA09/2019/1634/F had a recommendation for approval.

Proposed by Councillor McKinney Seconded by Councillor Kearney and

Resolved That planning application be LA09/2019/1634/F approved subject to conditions as per the officer's report.

LA09/2020/0164/F Dwelling and Detached Domestic Garage at Approx. 70m SE of 84 Fintona Road, Clogher for Teresa Dunphy & Jonathan Coney

Members considered previously circulated report on planning application which LA09/2020/0164/F had a recommendation for approval.

Proposed by Councillor McKinney

Seconded by Councillor Mallaghan and

Resolved That planning application be LA09/2020/0164/F approved subject to conditions as per the officer's report.

LA09/2020/0318/RM Bungalow and Domestic Garage at Site S of 63 Anneeter Road, Coagh for Oliver Conlon

Planning application LA09/2020/0318/RM withdrawn from the schedule.

LA09/2020/0321/O Infill Site for 2 Dwellings at Lands Adjacent to 26 Crewe Road, Maghera for Mr & Mrs R Shiels

Members considered previously circulated report on planning application which LA09/2020/0321/O had a recommendation for approval.

Proposed by Councillor McKinney Seconded by Councillor Kearney and

Resolved That planning application be LA09/2020/0321/O approved subject to conditions as per the officer's report.

LA09/2018/1598/O Dwelling and Garage in a Gap Site, 40m NW of 109 Drumenny Road, Ardboe for Anthony Mallon

Members considered previously circulated report on planning application which LA09/2018/15987/O had a recommendation for approval.

Proposed by Councillor Quinn Seconded by Councillor Bell and

Resolved That planning application be LA09/2018/1598/O approved subject to conditions as per the officer's report.

LA09/2019/0767/O Dwelling and Garage (Amended Access) at Approx. 150m NE OF 230 Coalisland Road, Gortin for Mr Cathal Keogh

Members considered previously circulated report on planning application which LA09/2019/0767/O had a recommendation for approval.

Proposed by Councillor Clarke Seconded by Councillor McFlynn and

Resolved That planning application be LA09/2019/0767/O approved subject to conditions as per the officer's report.

P055/20 Receive Report on Consultation with Dfl Regarding Planning Application LA03/2017/0310/F (Lough Neagh)

The Planning Manager presented previously circulated report to provide members with an overview and a draft reply to the consultation from the Department for Infrastructure (DfI) on a consultation under Section 76(3) of the Planning Act in respect of Planning Application LA03/2017/0310/F for 'Extraction, Transportation and Working of Sand, Gravel from Lough Neagh. Sand and gravel to be extracted from within two distinct areas totaling some 3.1km2, in the North-West of Lough Neagh situated approximately East of Traad Point, North of Stanierds Point, West of Doss Point and South of Ballyronan and the ancillary deposition of silt and fine material'.

The consultation was received by the Council on 28th May 2020 and asked for a response within 30 days. The Department have been advised that due to committee meeting dates a response could not be provided within that timeframe. They have therefore asked that a response be issued as soon as possible after the July committee meeting.

Proposed by Councillor McKinney Seconded by Councillor Brown and

Resolved To note the contents of the report and the attached consultation, and to agree that the draft response letter at Appendix 3 be issued to Dfl.

P056/20 Receive Report on Council's Consideration of Application by Dalradian Gold Ltd (LA10/2017/1249/F)

The Planning Manager presented previously circulated report to provide members with information on a planning application by Dalradian Gold Ltd (LA10/20107/1249/F) for 'Underground valuable minerals mining and exploration, surface level development including processing plant and other associated development and ancillary works, Greencastle, County Tyrone. (Please see application P1, sheet 1 for full project description).

Councillor McFlynn said that she fully welcomed the report due to the extent of community anger as there were over 40,000 plus objections and welcomed this. She said that issues around environment and health had to be addressed as Dalradian had expressed their intention to use radon gas.

She proposed that this Council is represented and also with legal representation as the residents of Mid Ulster want us to be the guidance as there was a need to fully pursue this.

The Planning Manager concurred with member comments and said that Fermanagh and Omagh needed to take the lead on this project as there were a lot of factors to take into consideration and said that Mid Ulster would need to err on the side of caution. He said that he would have no qualms about attending the public arena to raise concerns when the time comes and would be willing to take guidance from the committee on best way to proceed.

The Chair advised the member that her proposal would be revisited closer to the time

Councillor Mallaghan said that he welcomed the inquiry as in the past Minister Michelle O'Neill and Councillor Declan McAleer were at the forefront campaigning that Chris Hazzard MP take this on board and now we have that decision.

He said that it was interesting to hear the Planning Manager's opinions and felt that he was under enough pressure as it was without taking the lead on this matter. He stated that when Shackleton Resources tried to mine in the Sperrins, this Council was successful in having the application refused and sometimes we think it is not our place to get involved, but we need to do the right thing for our communities. He said that Dalradian site was bordering on Mid Ulster lands and if there was a better vein in our lands they would have no issue holding back on pursuing that also and said going forward, he would support Councillor McFlynn's suggestion, as there was a number of questions down the line to deal with and serious conversations when the time arrives.

The Planning Manager said that he would be happy for members to come to his office for discussion when the time arrives, as we do not have the scientific background which is needed and do not want to let the public down.

The Planning Manager agreed that once the letter was issued to the Department, the committee could discuss how measures can be brought forward.

Councillor Mallaghan to follow up on what the Planning Manager had said, suggested that this be brought back as an agenda item and discussed as a Task Group.

Councillor Clarke advised that this was not Mid Ulster's remit, but in close proximity and if Dalradian gets approval, the obvious impact would be on Mid Ulster's Dark Skies initiative at Davagh and the nearby river and agreed with the suggestion of setting up a group discussion to raise concerns.

Proposed by Councillor Bell Seconded by Councillor McFlynn and

Resolved

To note the contents of the report and agree that the Planning Manager write to the Department for Infrastructure (DfI) requesting that a Public Inquiry be held in relation to application LA10/2017/1249/F and provides the Department a copy of this report as to the reasons why.

Matters for Information

P057/20 Minutes of Planning Meeting held on 2 June 2020

Members noted Minutes of Planning Meeting held on 2 June 2020.

Live broadcast ended at 8.46 pm.

Local Government (NI) Act 2014 – Confidential Business

Proposed by Councillor Robinson Seconded by Councillor Mallaghan and

Resolved

In accordance with Section 42, Part 1 of Schedule 6 of the Local Government Act (NI) 2014 that Members of the public be asked to withdraw from the meeting whilst Members consider items P058/20 to P061/20.

Matters for Decision

P058/20 Receive Report on Davagh Dark Sky Planning Guidance

Matters for Information

P059/20 Confidential Minutes of Planning Committee held on 2

June 2020

P060/20 Enforcement Cases Opened P061/20 Enforcement Cases Closed

P062/20 Duration of Meeting

The meeting was called for 7 pm and concluded at 8.55 pm.

Chair
_
Date

Annex A – Introductory Remarks from the Chairperson

Good evening and welcome to the meeting of Mid Ulster District Council's Planning Committee in the Chamber, Magherafelt and virtually.

I specifically welcome the public watching us through the Live Broadcast feed. The Live Broadcast will run for the period of our Open Business but will end just before we move into Confidential Business. I will let you know before this happens.

Just some housekeeping before we commence. Can I remind you:-

- If you have joined the meeting remotely please keep your audio on mute unless invited to speak and then turn it off when finished speaking
- Keep your video on at all times, unless you have bandwidth or internet connection issues, where you are advised to try turning your video off
- If you wish to speak please raise your hand in the meeting or on screen and keep raised until observed by an Officer or myself
- Should we need to take a vote this evening please raise your hand in the normal way and keep raised until advised to lower
- For members attending remotely, note that by voting on any application, you are confirming that you were in attendance for the duration of, and that you heard and saw all relevant information in connection with the application you vote on
- When invited to speak please introduce yourself by name to the meeting. When finished please put your audio to mute
- For any member attending remotely, if you declare an interest in an item, please turn off your video and keep your audio on mute for the duration of the item
- O An Addendum was emailed to all Committee Members at 5pm today. There is also a hard copy on each desk in the Chamber. Can all members attending remotely please confirm that they received the Addendum and that have had sufficient time to review it?
- If referring to a specific report please reference the report, page or slide being referred to so everyone has a clear understanding
- For members of the public that are exercising a right to speak by remote means, please ensure that you are able to hear and be heard by councillors, officers and any others requesting speaking rights on the particular application. If this isn't the case you must advise the Chair immediately. Please note that once your application has been decided, you will be removed from the meeting. If you wish to view the rest of the meeting, please join the live link.

 Can I remind the public and press that taking photographs of proceedings or the use of any other means to enable persons not present to see or hear any proceedings (whether now or later), or making a contemporaneous oral report of any of the proceedings are all prohibited acts.

Thank you and we will now move to the first item on the agenda.



ADDENDUM TO PLANNING COMMITTEE AGENDA

FOR PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING ON: 6th July 2020

Additional information has been received on the following items since the agenda was issued.

ITEM	INFORMATION RECEIVED	ACTION REQUIRED
4.1	Letter of objection received	Members to note
4.5	Suffix error - should be O (outline) rather than F.	Members to note.
4.8	Withdrawn from the agenda to correct red line in relation to visibility splays.	Members to note.
7	Late objection received	Members to note.



Mid Ulster District Council Planning Department Local Development Plan Team 50 Ballyronan Road Magherafelt BT45 6EN Tel - 03000 132 132

Email developmentplan@midulstercouncil.org

Definition of Affordable Housing Further Stakeholder Engagement Department for Communities Housing Division Level 3, Causeway Exchange 1-7 Bedford Street Belfast BT2 7EG

Dear Sir / Madam

RE: Response to Further Stakeholder Engagement Briefing Paper Regarding the Definition of Affordable Housing

Mid Ulster District Council welcomes the opportunity to engage with the Department in this Further Stakeholder Engagement on the Definition of Affordable Housing. The comments made in this engagement should be read in conjunction with the comments made by MI-JDC in response to the initial consultation on this matter, which was dated 9th September 2019.

We note that the Department, having taken on board the comments made as part of the initial consultation process, has proposed to make the following changes to its original document;

i.Revised definition to include direct reference to social housing ii. Low cost housing without subsidy is no longer considered affordable housing within the context of the definition; although the concept is proposed to be examined in relation to low cost housing for rent such affordable build to rent schemes.

With regard to the 2 questions posed in the briefing paper, Ml-JDC would make the following comments in relation to each question.

QI — Do you agree with the proposed changes to the definition?

Specific Comments

Ml-JDC welcome the express reference to social rented housing within the definition of affordable housing as well as the commitment that there will be no negative impact on the level of access to social housing or interfere with the Department's Social Housing Development Programme. Mid Ulster has the second lowest number of social housing

properties in NI and the additional products put forward by the Department as constituting intermediate housing, in the original consultation document, are often beyond the means of those on lower incomes and those on the social housing need register. We welcome therefore, the direct reference to social rented housing, within the umbrella term for affordable housing, which can be used in local plans and policies moving forward.

Given that the remainder of the definition is unchanged from the initial definition put forward by the Department, the comments made by the Council in relation to that definition in our consultation response dated 9th September 2019 remain unaltered.

Q2 — Do you think there is anything further we should consider regarding low cost housing without subsidy?

Specific Comments

The Department states in its further briefing paper that whilst low cost housing without subsidy is no longer considered as being within the definition of affordable housing, they wish to further consider this concept as a means of delivering houses in Build to Rent schemes.

From a planning point of view, Ml-JDC would have serious concerns regarding the governance of such schemes. Unless these properties are subject to a new legislative regime and the Department of Communities is going to oversee their delivery and retention, it is difficult to imagine how such a scheme could operate with integrity and the appropriate level of control. It would certainly be inappropriate for the planning department of local councils to be expected to oversee such a scheme. Furthermore it would allow people claiming to be offering low cost rented accommodation access to policy provisions reserved for social housing, which inevitably would be abused.

In its original consultation document, the Department implied that such schemes could be regulated through planning conditions (para. 7.10) and this implication does not seem to have been altered by the further briefing paper. The Council is of the view that this approach would place the burden of regulating tenure and rental value on the planning system and this is clearly not the role of the local planning authorities. Planning can only provide an opportunity at the point at which permission is granted to ensure social housing is provided by a housing authority. After this point, it is the housing authority's responsibility to regulate tenure and value.

In conclusion we would oppose this change at the current time. This said we would challenge the Department of Communities to undertake further work to set out how they perceive this working in practice, what their role would be, what supporting legislation they propose to bring forward and what resources they process to bring to the table to assist deliver and manage this.

Yours Faithfully

Dr. Chris Boomer, Planning Manager Mid Ulster District Council